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NEVADA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Board Agenda Memo


MEETING DATE:	January 14, 2024

TO:	Board of Supervisors

FROM:	Shannan Moon, Sheriff-Coroner-Public Administrator

[bookmark: _Hlk185850608]SUBJECT:	Resolution authorizing the Purchasing Agent to advertise a Request for Proposals for the Design Build Firearms Range project and authorizing the Sheriff’s Office to compensate unsuccessful proposers (up to 3 firms) in the amount of $12,500 each.


RECOMMENDATION: Adopt the resolution.

FUNDING:  Funding for compensating unsuccessful bidders will come from the Sheriff Services budget unit and funding is included in the current year budget. If the Sheriff’s Office determines that a proposal is feasible, the Sheriff’s Office will return to the Board to seek approval before approving a design-build contract for the Project.

BACKGROUND:  The Sheriff’s Office has long desired a local indoor shooting/firearms range as our law enforcement and correctional officers are required to do quarterly firearms training. In addition, our Special Enforcement Detail is required to train twice per month. There are very limited options for completing training locally and generally, our officers have to travel out of county to complete.

In Fiscal Year 2023/24 the Sheriff’s Office, with support from the CEO and Board of Supervisors, requested federal Community Project Funding Request (CPFR) funds to offset the construction cost of a firearms range in the amount of $2.9 million.  The indoor Firearms Range is envisioned as a regional facility that would be accessible to other local public safety organizations for firearms training in addition to NCSO. Following submission of the CPFR request, the Sheriff’s Office in conjunction with Facilities, engaged an engineering/architect firm to provide a feasibility study, including preliminary project costs, to build the firearms range at the former Juvenile Hall site.

The feasibility study indicated that constructing the indoor range at that location was feasible, however, cost estimates were much higher than anticipated.  Based on additional research conducted by staff, there is reason to believe that costs could be lower, however, the only way to determine costs is through a Request for Proposals (RFP) process.

[bookmark: _Hlk185850721]The Sheriff’s Office has collaborated with the Purchasing Department and determined the best approach to procure this type of project is to conduct a Design Build Request for Proposal in a two phased process. Phase I would be to issue a Request for Qualifications questionnaire from which the County can establish a short list of potential firms, no more than three (3).  Those firms would then be invited to Phase II, where they will submit a design-build technical proposal for consideration by the County.  Preparing a technical response for Phase II is a sizable effort required to submit a well-prepared proposal.  Therefore, the Sheriff’s Office would like to compensate up to three (3) short-listed unsuccessful proposers in the amount not to exceed $12,500.

After submission and review of all short-listed proposals, a successful proposal could be chosen, assuming project costs are in the range of feasibility. Board approval to engage in a contract and commence the project will be brought back for consideration.  However, if the estimated cost of the project is outside of the range of feasibility, given available funding, the Sheriff’s Office may decide to not proceed further with the project at this time.   

Initiated by: 	Sean Scales
Approved by:	Shannan Moon
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